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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended November 30, 2006

or

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from              to             

Commission File Number

000-51307

CHAPARRAL STEEL COMPANY
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 20-2373478
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)
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300 Ward Road

Midlothian, Texas

76065

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(972) 775-8241

(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Not Applicable

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (l) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x     No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
�accelerated filer and large accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer  ¨    Accelerated filer  ¨    Non-accelerated filer  x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

There were 46,390,106 shares of common stock, $0.01 par value per share, outstanding on January 8, 2007.
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For purposes of this Quarterly Report, references to the �Company,� �we,� �us,� �our� and �Chaparral� mean Chaparral Steel Company collectively with
all of our subsidiaries.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report contains �forward-looking statements.� All statements other than statements of historical fact are �forward-looking
statements.� Forward-looking statements may include the words �may,� �will,� �estimate,� �intend,� �continue,� �believe,� �expect,� �plan,� or �anticipate� and
other similar words. Such forward-looking statements may be contained in �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations,� among other places. Forward-looking statements include statements concerning:

� future results of operations;

� future cash flows and liquidity;

� future capital expenditures;

� competitive pressures and general economic and financial conditions;

� levels of construction activity;

� levels of import activity;

� inclement weather;

� the occurrence of unanticipated equipment failures and plant outages;

� cost and availability of raw materials, fuel and energy;

� environmental conditions and regulations; and

� any assumptions underlying any of the foregoing.
Although we believe the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual results could differ materially from
those projected or assumed in our forward-looking statements. Our future financial condition and results of operations, as well as any
forward-looking statements, are subject to change and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties, such as those disclosed in this Quarterly
Report. Each forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date of the particular statement.

i

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 3



Table of Contents

INDEX

CHAPARRAL STEEL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Page
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements 1

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 2

Consolidated Balance Sheets - November 30, 2006 and May 31, 2006 3

Consolidated Statements of Operations - three months and six months ended November 30, 2006 and November 30, 2005 4

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - six months ended November 30, 2006 and November 30, 2005 5

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders� Equity - six months ended November 30, 2006 6

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7

Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 25

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 33

Item 4. Controls and Procedures 34

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 34

Item 1A. Risk Factors 34

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 35

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities 35

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 35

Item 5. Other Information 35

Item 6. Exhibits 39

Signatures 42

ii

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 4



Table of Contents

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 5



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Chaparral Steel Company

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Chaparral Steel Company and subsidiaries as of November 30, 2006, the
related consolidated statements of operations for the three-month and six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows for the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005 and the related consolidated statement of
stockholders� equity for the six-month period ended November 30, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s
management.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review of
interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the consolidated interim financial statements
referred to above for them to be in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheet of Chaparral Steel Company and subsidiaries as of May 31, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders� equity, and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein), and in our report dated July 19, 2006, we
expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. On September 1, 2006, the Company distributed a 100% common
stock dividend resulting in a revision of the May 31, 2006 consolidated balance sheet. We have not audited the revised consolidated balance
sheet reflecting its revision for the stock dividend.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Dallas, Texas

January 10, 2007
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CHAPARRAL STEEL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share data)

(Unaudited)

November 30,
2006

May 31,
2006

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 34,568 $ 42,583
Short-term investments 289,150 164,000
Accounts receivable 170,743 159,721
Inventories 190,951 159,803
Prepaid expenses 6,665 7,465

Total current assets 692,077 533,572

Other assets:
Goodwill 85,166 85,166
Investments and deferred charges 17,784 16,807

102,950 101,973

Property, plant and equipment:
Land and land improvements 96,926 96,926
Buildings 56,075 55,570
Machinery and equipment 1,037,392 1,032,697
Construction in progress 33,017 28,867

1,223,410 1,214,060
Less depreciation 644,130 620,083

579,280 593,977

$ 1,374,307 $ 1,229,522

Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable $ 75,121 $ 49,979
Accrued wages, taxes and other liabilities 51,556 55,392

Total current liabilities 126,677 105,371

Deferred income taxes and other credits 149,238 155,645

Long-term debt 300,000 300,000

Stockholders� equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value 464 462
Additional paid-in capital 715,538 707,573
Retained earnings (deficit) 82,390 (39,529)
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Total stockholders� equity 798,392 668,506

$ 1,374,307 $ 1,229,522

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CHAPARRAL STEEL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)

Three months ended
November 30,

Six months ended
November 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Net sales $ 403,377 $ 348,130 $ 814,026 $ 686,535
Costs and expenses (income)
Cost of products sold 288,184 283,247 594,952 580,441
Selling, general and administrative 14,089 9,484 24,748 16,923
Interest 7,918 7,982 15,964 16,146
Other income, net (7,742) (4,091) (11,229) (5,393)

302,449 296,622 624,435 608,117

Income before income taxes 100,928 51,508 189,591 78,418
Income taxes 33,461 17,505 63,037 26,664

Net income $ 67,467 $ 34,003 $ 126,554 $ 51,754

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 1.45 $ 0.74 $ 2.73 $ 1.13

Diluted $ 1.40 $ 0.72 $ 2.62 $ 1.11

Average shares outstanding:
Basic 46,413 45,717 46,355 45,716

Diluted 48,292 47,296 48,212 46,691

Cash dividends per share $ 0.10 $ �  $ 0.10 $ �  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

4

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 9



Table of Contents

CHAPARRAL STEEL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Six months ended

November 30,
2006 2005

Operating activities:
Net income $ 126,554 $ 51,754
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation 24,074 24,883
Deferred income taxes (5,048) 1,358
Stock-based compensation 1,636 79
Other � net (456) 668
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (11,022) (4,412)
Inventories (31,148) 67,433
Prepaid expenses 721 (2,201)
Accounts payable 25,142 (6,079)
Accrued wages, taxes and other liabilities (2,783) 37,405
Other credits (1,288) 488
Receivable from or payable to TXI �  (10,286)

Net cash provided by operating activities 126,382 161,090

Investing activities:
Capital expenditures (9,409) (8,128)
Purchases of short-term investments (6,431,360) (317,130)
Sales of short-term investments 6,306,210 274,355
Other � net (490) (595)

Net cash used by investing activities (135,049) (51,498)

Financing activities:
Long-term borrowings �  350,000
Debt retirements �  (50,000)
Debt issuance costs �  (9,469)
Dividend paid to Texas Industries, Inc. �  (341,139)
Issuance of common stock 698 24
Tax benefits from exercise of stock options 4,589 2,337
Common dividends paid (4,635) �  

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 652 (48,247)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (8,015) 61,345

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 42,583 9,287

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 34,568 $ 70,632
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CHAPARRAL STEEL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)

Preferred
Stock

Common
Stock

Additional

Paid-in

Capital

Retained

Earnings

(Deficit)

Total

Stockholders�

Equity
May 31, 2006, as previously reported $ �  $ 231 $ 707,804 $ (39,529) $ 668,506
Adjustment for the 100% stock dividend �  231 (231) �  �  

May 31, 2006, as adjusted �  462 707,573 (39,529) 668,506

Net income �  �  �  126,554 126,554
Adjustment of prior contribution by Texas Industries, Inc. �  �  1,053 �  1,053
Stock-based compensation �  �  1,547 �  1,547
Stock award issued �  �  80 �  80
Issuance of common stock for options �  2 696 �  698
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options �  �  4,589 �  4,589
Common dividends paid - $0.10 per share �  �  �  (4,635) (4,635)

November 30, 2006 $ �  $ 464 $ 715,538 $ 82,390 $ 798,392

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CHAPARRAL STEEL COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Chaparral Steel Company and its subsidiaries (the �Company�) is a leading supplier of structural steel and steel bar products through a single
business segment. The Company produces and sells structural steel, piling products, special bar quality products, merchant bar quality rounds,
reinforcing bar and channels from facilities located in Texas and Virginia. Structural steel products include wide flange beams, piling products,
channels and other shapes. Steel bar products include specialty bar products and, to a lesser extent, reinforcing bar. The Company sells to steel
service centers and steel fabricators for use in the construction industry, as well as to cold finishers, forgers and original equipment
manufacturers for use in the railroad, defense, automotive, manufactured housing and energy industries. The Company�s products are marketed
throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico, and to a limited extent in Europe. All of the Company�s long-lived assets are located in the
United States.

On July 29, 2005, Texas Industries, Inc. and its subsidiaries (�TXI�) completed the spin-off of its steel business to TXI stockholders in the form of
a pro-rata, tax-free dividend of one share of the Company�s common stock for each share of TXI stock owned on July 20, 2005. Although
pursuant to the Company�s separation and distribution agreement with TXI and certain ancillary agreements, TXI has agreed to indemnify the
Company against certain liabilities and the Company has agreed to indemnify TXI against certain liabilities, TXI has no further ownership
interest in the Company and the Company has no ownership interest in TXI. In addition, the Company is not a guarantor of any of TXI�s
indebtedness and TXI is not a guarantor of any of the Company�s indebtedness. The Company�s relationship with TXI is now governed by the
separation and distribution agreement and the ancillary agreements described in that agreement. The terms of the agreements are more fully
described in Note 9 �Legal Proceedings and Contingent Liabilities.� At various times, items of intercompany indebtedness were settled by and
among the Company and the Company�s subsidiaries and TXI and its subsidiaries. These intercompany accounts were settled through offsets,
contributions of such indebtedness to the Company�s capital and other non-cash transfers. During the six months ended November 30, 2006, an
adjustment of $1.1 million was recorded increasing the previous contributions to the Company�s capital by TXI.

For all periods prior to the spin-off, the Company�s costs include the allocation of certain corporate expenses from TXI. TXI�s corporate expenses
have been allocated to the Company based on either the percentage of time employees spent performing services for the Company or specifically
identified costs incurred by TXI for the Company. Management believes that the allocations were made on a reasonable basis. However, the
consolidated financial statements for periods prior to the spin off may not necessarily reflect the financial position, results of operations and cash
flows of the Company in the future, nor is it practical for management to estimate what the financial position, results of operations or cash flows
would have been if the Company had been an independent, public company for the historical periods presented.

On July 12, 2006, the Company�s board of directors approved a stock split effected in the form of a 100% common stock dividend which was
distributed on September 1, 2006 to stockholders of record on August 15, 2006. The historical share and per share amounts have been
retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock dividend for all periods presented.

On October 11, 2006, the Company�s board of directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the Company to repurchase up to $100
million of the Company�s common stock. Prior to any repurchase, the board must be advised and approve the terms of the proposed repurchase.
No shares of the Company�s common stock were repurchased in the quarter ended November 30, 2006.

On October 11, 2006, the Company�s board of directors initiated a quarterly cash dividend of $0.10 per common share. A dividend of $4.6
million was paid on November 15, 2006 to stockholders of record as of the close of business on November 1, 2006.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
for interim financial information and the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of
the information and footnotes required by

7

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 13



Table of Contents

generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of only
normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair statement of the results for the interim periods presented have been included.
Operating results for the six-month period ended November 30, 2006, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the
year ending May 31, 2007. For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the
Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2006.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Chaparral Steel Company and all subsidiaries. Certain
amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Estimates. The preparation of financial statements and accompanying notes in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The estimated fair value of each class of financial instruments as of November 30, 2006 approximates its
carrying value except for the Senior Notes having a fixed interest rate at November 30, 2006. The fair value of the Senior Notes at November 30,
2006, estimated based on quoted market prices, was $334.5 million compared to the carrying amount of $300.0 million.

Cash Equivalents. Investments with maturities of less than 90 days when purchased are classified as cash equivalents and consist primarily of
money market funds and investment grade commercial paper issued by major corporations and financial institutions.

Short-term Investments. Short-term investments consist of Auction Rate Securities (�ARS�). At November 30, 2006, these ARS have remaining
stated maturities which range from 10 to 35 years, but have their interest rates reset at predetermined intervals, typically less than 30 days,
through an auction process. The Company invests in high credit quality instruments of political subdivisions of states with an active resale
market to ensure liquidity and the ability to readily convert these investments into cash to fund current operations or satisfy other cash
requirements as needed. Accordingly, the Company classified all these securities as available-for-sale and as current assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet as of November 30, 2006. The ARS are stated at cost which approximates fair value based on market quotes. Net
unrealized gains and losses, net of deferred taxes, have not been significant. The Company limits the amount of credit exposure to any one
issuer. The Company expects that the majority of its short-term investments will be sold within one year, regardless of legal maturity date.
Purchases and sales activity of ARS are presented as cash flows from investing activities in the accompanying consolidated statements of cash
flows.

Accounts Receivable. Management evaluates the ability to collect accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. A reserve for doubtful
accounts is maintained based on historical default rates and current economic trends. The reserve is increased if it is anticipated that a specific
customer will be unable to make required payments. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are limited due to the large
number of customers in the Company�s customer base and their dispersion across geographical areas.

Environmental Liabilities. The Company is subject to environmental laws and regulations established by federal, state and local authorities and
makes provision for the estimated costs related to compliance when it is probable that a reasonably estimable liability has been incurred.

Legal Contingencies. The Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in lawsuits which arose in the normal course of business, and make
provision for the estimated loss from any claim or legal proceeding when it is probable that a reasonably estimable liability has been incurred.

Long-lived Assets. Management reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets may not be recoverable and would record an impairment charge if necessary. Such evaluations compare the carrying amount of an
asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset and are significantly impacted by estimates of future prices for
the Company�s products, capital needs, economic trends and other factors. All of the Company�s long-lived assets are located in the United States.
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Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost. Provisions for depreciation are computed generally using the straight-line method. The
Company assigns each fixed asset a useful life generally ranging from 5 to 7 years for mobile and other equipment, 10 to 20 years for machinery
and equipment and 20 to 40 years for buildings and land improvements. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Costs
incurred for scheduled shut-downs to refurbish facilities are amortized over the benefited period, typically 12 months. Such deferred amounts are
included in prepaid expenses on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and amounted to $3.0 million at November 30, 2006 and $3.4
million at May 31, 2006.

Goodwill. Management tests goodwill for impairment at least annually. If the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds its fair value, an
impairment loss is recognized. In applying a fair-value-based test, estimates are made of the expected future cash flows to be derived from the
applicable reporting unit. Similar to the review for impairment of other long-lived assets, the resulting fair value determination is significantly
impacted by estimates of future prices for the Company�s products, capital needs, economic trends and other factors. At May 31, 2006, the fair
value of the Company�s goodwill on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet exceeded its carrying value of $85.2 million.

Investments and Deferred Charges. Investments are composed primarily of life insurance contracts that may be used to fund certain Company
benefit agreements. The contracts, recorded at their net cash surrender value, totaled $10.0 million at November 30, 2006 and $8.3 million at
May 31, 2006. Deferred charges are composed primarily of debt issuance costs that totaled $7.8 million at November 30, 2006 and $8.5 million
at May 31, 2006. The costs are associated with various debt issues and amortized over the term of the related debt.

Other Credits. Other credits of $12.6 million at November 30, 2006 and $13.8 million at May 31, 2006 are composed primarily of liabilities
related to the Company�s retirement plans, asset retirement obligations and deferred compensation agreements.

Asset Retirement Obligations. Changes in asset retirement obligations are as follows (in thousands):

Six months ended

November 30,
2006 2005

Balance at beginning of period $ 1,040 $ 566
Accretion expense 60 34
Settlements (25) (42)

Balance at end of period $ 1,075 $ 558

Net Sales. The Company sells products to a highly diversified customer base representing various steel consuming markets. A significant portion
of the Company�s sales are to steel service centers, fabricators and processors. These customers typically act as intermediaries between steel
producers and various end-user manufacturers that require further processing or inventory programs. The Company recognizes revenue when the
goods are shipped and title and risk of loss transfer to the customer (FOB shipping point). The Company typically includes delivery fees in the
amount it bills customers to the extent needed to recover the Company�s cost of freight and delivery. Net sales from other products were
generated from the Company�s metals separation operation.
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The following table summarizes the Company�s net sales by product line (in thousands):

Three months ended

November 30,

Six months ended

November 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005

Net sales
Structural mills $ 313,987 $ 259,530 $ 627,576 $ 509,569
Bar mill 55,133 58,408 113,169 119,171
Other products 13,062 9,084 29,098 17,698
Delivery fees 21,195 21,108 44,183 40,097

$ 403,377 $ 348,130 $ 814,026 $ 686,535

Other Income. Other income in the three-month and six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 includes $4.1 million of insurance recovery
from a business interruption claim stemming from an outage of the rolling mill at our Virginia facility that occurred during the three months
ended August 31, 2006 Interest income was $2.8 million and $0.6 million in the three-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively and $5.3 million and $0.6 million in the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Income Taxes. The Company uses the liability method of recognizing and classifying deferred income taxes. The Company and its subsidiaries
will be included in the consolidated income tax returns of TXI for periods prior to the spin-off and will file stand alone returns for subsequent
periods. However, the provision for income taxes for the periods presented has been determined as if the Company had filed separate tax returns.
The Company provides valuation allowances to reduce deferred tax assets to amounts that will more likely than not be realized.

Earnings Per Share (�EPS�). Basic EPS is computed by adjusting net income for the participation in earnings of unvested restricted shares
outstanding, then dividing by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period including contingently issuable
shares and excluding outstanding unvested restricted shares. Contingently issuable shares relate to former deferred compensation agreements in
which directors elected to defer annual and meeting fees. During the six months ended November 30, 2006, the Company issued 142,188 shares
of common stock as a result of the exercise of stock options, 9,666 shares of common stock as a result of a non-employee director restricted
stock awards and 2,530 shares of common stock as a result of an employee stock award. Diluted EPS adjusts net income and the outstanding
shares for the dilutive effect of stock options and other equity-based awards.
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Three months ended

November 30,

Six months ended

November 30,
In thousands except per share data 2006 2005 2006 2005
Basic earnings:
Net income $ 67,467 $ 34,003 $ 126,554 $ 51,754
Unvested restricted share participation (52) �  (131) �  

Basic income $ 67,415 $ 34,003 $ 126,423 $ 51,754

Dilutive earnings:
Net income $ 67,467 $ 34,003 $ 126,554 $ 51,754
Unvested restricted share participation (50) �  (126) �  

Basic income $ 67,417 $ 34,003 $ 126,428 $ 51,754

Shares:
Weighted-average shares outstanding 46,342 45,610 46,296 45,609
Contingently issuable shares 107 107 107 107
Unvested restricted shares (36) �  (48) �  

Basic weighted-average shares 46,413 45,717 46,355 45,716

Dilutive stock options and other equity-based awards 1,879 1,579 1,857 975

Diluted weighted-average shares 48,292 47,296 48,212 46,691

Net income:
Basic earnings per share $ 1.45 $ 0.74 $ 2.73 $ 1.13

Diluted earnings per share $ 1.40 $ 0.72 $ 2.62 $ 1.11

Stock-based Compensation. The Company�s employees and non-employee directors participate in stock compensation plans. The plans provide
for the granting of incentive and non-qualified stock options, restricted stock and other equity-based incentive awards for officers, key
employees and non-employee directors.

Prior to June 1, 2006, the Company accounted for employee and non-employee director stock options using the intrinsic value method of
accounting prescribed by APB Opinion (�APB�) No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,� as allowed by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (�SFAS�) No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.� Generally, no expense was recognized related to the
Company�s stock options because each option�s exercise price was set at the stock�s fair market value on the date the option was granted.

Effective June 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), �Share-Based Payments,� using the
modified prospective application method. Under this modified prospective method, compensation cost recognized for the three and six months
ended November 30, 2006 includes the applicable amounts of compensation cost of stock-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as
of June 1, 2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123 and previously
presented in pro forma footnote disclosures. The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation method to determine the fair value of stock
options as of the grant date. For restricted stock awards, the Company uses the stock price as of the grant date to determine the fair value. The
impact of recognizing compensation expense related to stock options using the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) was $0.5
million (net of tax benefit of $0.1 million) or $0.01 per common share for the three-month period ended November 30, 2006 and $0.9 million
(net of tax benefit of $0.2 million) or $0.02 per common share for the six-month period ended November 30, 2006. Results for periods prior to
June 1, 2006, have not been restated.
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Total stock-based compensation expense, related to the Company�s stock options and non-employee director stock awards, recognized using the
straight-line method over the requisite service period of the award was as follows (in thousands):

Three
Months Ended

Six
Months Ended

November 30, 2006
Cost of products sold $ 179 $ 347
Selling, general and administrative 537 1,200

$ 716 $ 1,547

As of November 30, 2006, the total estimated future compensation cost related to previous grants of stock options to be recognized in the
statement of operations was $7.4 million over a weighted-average period of 22 months while $0.6 million remained to be recognized related to
previous grants of restricted stock awards over a weighted-average period of 6 months. In addition, the Company currently expects to recognize
future compensation expense of $2.4 million related to the share portion of the new performance awards to be granted to the executive officers
under the 2006 Plan (see Note 7 and 11).

Prior to adopting SFAS 123(R), the Company presented the tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options as operating
cash flows. SFAS 123(R) requires the cash flows resulting from excess tax benefits related to stock options be classified as a part of cash flows
from financing activities. As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R) effective June 1, 2006, $4.6 million of excess tax benefits have been recorded in
the current period as financing cash flows.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures under SFAS 123 for the three-month and six-month periods ended November 30, 2005, the estimated fair
value of the stock options was assumed to be amortized to expense over the stock options� vesting periods. The pro forma effects of recognizing
estimated compensation expense under the fair value method on net income and earnings per common share were as follows (in thousands,
except per share data):

Three

Months Ended

Six

Months Ended
November 30, 2005

Net income
As reported $ 34,003 $ 51,754
Stock-based compensation included in the determination of net income as reported, net of
tax 20 48
Fair value of stock-based compensation, net of tax (391) (655)

Pro forma $ 33,632 $ 51,147

Net earnings per share-as reported:
Basic $ 0.74 $ 1.13
Diluted 0.72 1.11
Net earnings per share-pro forma:
Basic 0.74 1.12
Diluted 0.71 1.10

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued FASB Interpretation No. (�FIN�) 48, �Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,� in July 2006. The new rules will be effective for the Company in the fiscal year beginning June 1, 2007. The
Company is evaluating this interpretation, but does not presently anticipate its adoption will have a material impact on the Company�s financial
statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements,� which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157
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statements.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, �Employers� Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans�an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R),� which requires employers to fully recognize the funded status of single-employer
defined benefit pension, retiree healthcare and other postretirement plans in their financial statements, recognize as a component of other
comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as
components of net periodic costs, measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the Company�s fiscal year-end statement
of financial position, and disclose in the notes to financial statements additional information about certain effects on net periodic benefit cost for
the next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and transition asset or obligation. The
requirement of SFAS No. 158 to recognize the funded status of a benefit plan and the disclosure requirements is effective as of the end of the
fiscal year ending May 31, 2007. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employer�s fiscal year-end
statement of financial position will be effective for the fiscal year ending May 31, 2008. The Company is evaluating this interpretation, but does
not presently anticipate its adoption will have a material impact on the Company�s financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position AUG AIR-1, �Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities� which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. This position statement eliminates the accrue-in-advance method of accounting for
planned major maintenance activities. The Company is evaluating this interpretation, but does not presently anticipate its adoption will have a
material impact on the Company�s financial statements.

3. Working Capital

Working capital totaled $565.4 million at November 30, 2006 and $428.2 million at May 31, 2006.

Short-term investments were $289.2 million at November 30, 2006 and $164.0 million at May 31, 2006 and consisted of Auction Rate
Securities, all of which had stated maturities of over 10 years but have their interest rates reset at predetermined intervals, typically less than 30
days, through an auction process.

Accounts receivable are presented net of allowances for doubtful receivables of $1.6 million at November 30, 2006 and $1.8 million at May 31,
2006 and net of allowances for returns and allowances of $0.4 million at November 30, 2006 and May 31, 2006. The Company had no
provisions (recoveries) for bad debts charged to expense in the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Amounts
written off as uncollectible were $0.2 million and none for the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
Company had no additional provisions for returns and allowances charged to sales in the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Accounts receivable at November 30, 2006 includes a $4.1 million business interruption insurance claim and a $1.2 million
property insurance claim stemming from an outage of the rolling mill at the Virginia facility that occurred during the three months ended
August 31, 2006.
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Inventories consist of (in thousands):

November 30,

2006

May 31,

2006
Finished products $ 69,764 $ 52,373
Work in process 12,054 15,348
Raw materials 30,944 16,952
Supplies 78,189 75,130

$ 190,951 $ 159,803

Inventories, excluding supplies, are stated at cost (not in excess of market) using the last-in, first-out (�LIFO�) method that results in better
matching of costs and revenues than other methods. An actual valuation of inventory under the LIFO method can be made only at the end of
each year based on the inventory levels and costs at that time. Accordingly, interim LIFO calculations are based on management�s estimates of
expected year-end inventory levels and costs and are subject to the final year-end LIFO inventory valuation. If the average cost method (which
approximates current replacement cost) had been used, inventory values would have been higher by $54.4 million at November 30, 2006 and
$51.5 million higher at May 31, 2006. Supplies primarily consist of rolls and molds, which are used in the manufacturing processes, and are
carried at average cost.

Effective June 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 151, �Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.� This standard clarifies
that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material should be expensed as incurred and not included in
inventory. In addition, this standard requires that the allocation of fixed production overhead costs to inventory be based on the normal capacity
of the production facilities. The adoption of this standard did not have a significant effect on the Company�s consolidated financial position or
results of operations.

Accrued wages, taxes and other liabilities consist of (in thousands):

November 30,

2006

May 31,

2006
Employee wages and benefits $ 23,912 $ 26,354
Property taxes 5,863 3,135
Current income taxes payable 4,191 6,695
Interest payable 11,402 11,431
Other liabilities 6,188 7,777

$ 51,556 $ 55,392

4. Commitments

The Company has entered into an agreement to purchase a minimum monthly amount of processed gases at a base price adjusted quarterly based
upon a percentage change in the producer price index. The gases are produced from a facility located at the Company�s Texas facility which is
owned and operated by an independent third party. This agreement expires in August 2012. At November 30, 2006, the minimum monthly
charge was approximately $0.5 million. The Company has entered into a similar agreement to purchase processed gases for its Virginia facility
with the same third party, which expires in December 2014. The agreement specifies that the Company will purchase a minimum monthly
amount of processed gases at a base price adjusted quarterly based upon a similar formula. At November 30, 2006, the minimum monthly charge
was approximately $0.1 million. The Company believes that its minimum purchase requirements will be satisfied by its consumption of the
products in the normal course of its business.

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 21



The Company has entered into an agreement to purchase a minimum monthly amount of mill services at its Texas facility. This agreement
expires in December 2014. At November 30, 2006, the minimum monthly charge was approximately $23,000. The Company has entered into a
similar agreement to purchase a minimum monthly amount of mill services for its Virginia facility. This agreement expires in June 2012. At
November 30, 2006, the minimum monthly charge was approximately $0.4 million. The Company believes that its minimum purchase
requirements will be satisfied by its consumption of the products in the normal course of its business.
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The Company has entered into agreements to purchase minimum amounts of electricity and natural gas for its Texas and Virginia facilities.
Total commitments under these agreements were $33.9 million in the six-month period ended November 30, 2006. As of November 30, 2006,
the Company�s remaining commitments under these agreements extend through February 2007 for natural gas in Texas and March 2007 for
natural gas in Virginia. The Company believes its purchase requirements will be satisfied by its consumption of these energy sources in the
normal course of its business.

The Company leases certain mobile and other equipment, real estate and other items, which in the normal course of business are renewed or
replaced by subsequent leases. Total expense for such operating leases was $1.2 million and $0.8 million in the six-month periods ended
November 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Future estimated payments under these agreements as of November 30, 2006 are as follows for the years ending November 30 as noted (in
thousands):

Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 After 2011
Processed gas supply contract 38,654 6,370 6,371 6,370 6,371 6,370 6,802
In-plant mill services 22,000 4,668 4,668 4,669 4,668 2,473 854
Short-term energy purchase obligations 7,794 7,794 �  �  �  �  �  
Operating lease obligations 3,718 643 505 496 497 317 1,260

Total $ 72,166 $ 19,475 $ 11,544 $ 11,535 $ 11,536 $ 9,160 $ 8,916

5. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt is comprised of the following (in thousands):

November 30,

2006

May 31,

2006
Senior secured credit facility expiring in 2010 $ �  $ �  
Senior notes due in 2013, interest rate 10.00% 300,000 300,000

300,000 300,000
Less current maturities �  �  

$ 300,000 $ 300,000
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On June 16, 2005, the Company entered into a senior secured revolving credit facility (the �Credit Facility�) which provides up to $150.0 million
of available borrowings. The Credit Facility includes a $25.0 million sub-limit for letters of credit of which $3.2 million was outstanding at
November 30, 2006. Any outstanding letters of credit are deducted from the borrowing availability under the Credit Facility. Amounts drawn
under the Credit Facility bear interest either at the LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.00% to 1.75%, or at a base rate (which will be the higher of the
federal funds rate plus 0.5% and the prime rate) plus a margin of up to 1%. The interest rate margins are subject to adjustments based on the
Company�s leverage ratio. The commitment fee calculated on the unused portion of the Credit Facility ranges from 0.25% to 0.5% per year based
on the Company�s leverage ratio. The Credit Facility matures June 16, 2010 and may be terminated by the Company at any time. The Credit
Facility is secured by security interests in all of the Company�s existing and future accounts and inventory, certain related personal property and
in all of the equity interest in the Company�s present and future domestic subsidiaries and 66% of the equity interest in the Company�s present and
future foreign subsidiaries. The Credit Facility contains covenants restricting, among other things, prepayment or redemption of the Company�s
other debt, distributions, dividends, and repurchases of capital stock and other equity interests, acquisitions and investments, indebtedness, liens
and affiliate transactions. The Company is required to comply with certain financial tests and to maintain certain financial ratios, such as
leverage and interest coverage ratios. The amount borrowed under the Credit Facility will fluctuate based upon the Company�s cash flow and
working capital needs.

In addition, on July 6, 2005, the Company issued $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of 10% senior notes due July 15, 2013 in a private
offering. On December 2, 2005, the Company completed the offer to exchange senior notes due 2013 (the �Senior Notes�), which are registered
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, for the outstanding 10% senior notes due 2013 that were issued in the private offering. The terms
of the registered notes are substantially identical to the Company�s previously outstanding senior notes. The Senior Notes are unsecured and will
effectively be subordinated in right of payment to all of the Company�s existing and future senior secured debt, including borrowings under the
Company�s Credit Facility. The indenture governing the Senior Notes contains covenants limiting the Company�s ability and the ability of the
Company�s subsidiaries to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends or make other distributions or repurchase or redeem
stock, make investments, sell assets, incur liens, enter into agreements restricting the Company�s subsidiaries� ability to pay dividends, enter into
transactions with affiliates and consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of the Company�s assets or the assets of its subsidiaries. Interest
is due semi-annually on January 15th and July 15th. As of November 30, 2006, the Company was in compliance with all loan covenants.

The Company used the net proceeds from $50.0 million of borrowings under the Credit Facility and the $300.0 million of Senior Notes to pay a
cash dividend of $341.1 million to Texas Industries, Inc. on July 6, 2005.

The amount of interest paid was $15.3 million and $3.3 million in the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. No
interest was capitalized in either of the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005.

6. Stockholders� Equity

Common stock, as adjusted for the 100% stock dividend, consists of (in thousands):

November 30,

2006

May 31,

2006
Shares authorized 100,000 100,000
Shares outstanding 46,363 46,209

Preferred stock consists of 10,000,000 authorized shares, $0.01 par value, none of which have been issued.
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7. Stock Compensation Plans

On July 21, 2005, the Board of Directors and on July 22, 2005, TXI as the sole stockholder of the Company approved the Company�s Amended
and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the �2005 Plan�) which provides for grants of stock-based awards, including
non-qualified and incentive stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, and performance units to non-employee
directors, officers and key employees of the Company. On August 29, 2006, the Company�s stockholders ratified the 2005 Plan. The Chaparral
Steel Company 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the �2006 Plan�), as approved by stockholders, provides for grants of performance awards, annual
incentive awards or a combination of such awards. Awards under the 2006 Plan for fiscal 2007 may be paid in cash, in shares of the common
stock or both. Any shares of common stock used to settle awards will be issued under the 2005 Plan as �Other Stock-Based Awards� and will
count against the maximum number of shares that may be issued under the 2005 Plan. At November 30, 2006, a maximum of 7,244,436 shares
of the Company�s common stock is available for issuance to participants under the 2005 plan.

During the six-month period ended November 30, 2006, executive officers and key employees were awarded options to purchase 73,232 shares
of common stock. The options were granted at the weighted market price of the common stock of $38.791 on date of grant. The term of the
options is ten years and the options vest in equal annual installments over five years.

A summary of Company stock option transactions related to the Company�s employees and non-employee directors for the six-month period
ended November 30, 2006, follows:

Shares Under

Option

Weighted-

Average Option

Price
Options outstanding at May 31, 2006, as previously reported 1,535,141 $ 13.14
Adjustment for the 100% stock dividend 1,535,141 (6.57)

Options outstanding at May 31, 2006, as adjusted 3,070,282 6.57
Granted 73,232 38.79
Exercised (142,188) (4.91)
Cancelled (15,200) (4.96)

Options outstanding at November 30, 2006 2,986,126 $ 7.45

Options exercisable at November 30, 2006 459,176 $ 5.99

The term of the options is ten years and the options vest in equal annual installments over five years. Outstanding options expire on various dates
through October 11, 2016.

The following table summarizes information about Company stock options held by the Company�s employees and non-employee directors
outstanding as of November 30, 2006:

Range of Exercise Prices
$2.675-$7.645 $9.20-$15.18 $38.791

Options outstanding:
Shares outstanding 1,716,668 1,196,226 73,232
Weighted-average remaining life in years 6.69 8.72 9.87
Weighted-average exercise price $ 4.28 $ 10.08 $ 38.79
Options exercisable:
Shares exercisable 271,910 187,266 �  
Weighted-average exercise price $ 3.69 $ 9.33 $ �  
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As of November 30, 2006, the aggregate intrinsic value (the difference in the closing market price of the Company�s common stock of $46.50
and the exercise price to be paid by the optionee) of stock options outstanding was $116.6 million. The aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable
stock options at that date was $18.6 million. During the six-month period ended November 30, 2006, the total intrinsic value for options
exercised (the difference in the market price of the Company�s common stock on the exercise date and the price paid by the optionee to exercise
the option) was $4.4 million.

In addition, during the six-month period ended November 30, 2006, the Company�s board of directors granted 9,666 shares of restricted stock to
non-employee directors pursuant to the 2005 Plan, at the weighted market price of the common stock of $38.791 on date of grant. The Company
recorded compensation expense of $0.4 million related to restricted stock grants based on their vesting periods for the six-month period ended
November 30, 2006. As of November 30, 2006, 39,666 shares of restricted stock awarded to non-employee directors were unvested.

8. Income Taxes

Income taxes for the interim periods have been included in the accompanying financial statements on the basis of an estimated annual rate of
33.2% and 33.3% for the three-month and six-month periods ended November 30, 2006, respectively, compared to an estimated annual tax rate
of 34.0% for the three-month and six-month periods ended November 30, 2005. The primary reason that these respective tax rates differ from
the 35% statutory federal corporate rate is due to deduction for qualified domestic production activities. The Company made income tax
payments of $66.0 million and $13.0 million in the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

As of May 31, 2006, the Company has $688.7 million in Virginia state net operating loss carryforwards that begin to expire in 2020. The
Company also has Virginia state credits to offset future income tax liabilities of $41.9 million that begin to expire in 2018 and $10 million of
credits that do not expire. The Company had net Virginia state deferred tax assets of $47.4 million at May 31, 2006 and $51.9 million at May 31,
2005. Management believes it is more likely than not that this net state deferred tax asset will be unrealized. Therefore, a valuation allowance
has been recorded to fully reserve the amount of the net state deferred tax assets.

9. Legal Proceedings and Contingent Liabilities

The Company is subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations concerning, among other matters, air emissions, furnace
dust disposal and wastewater discharge. The Company believes it is in substantial compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations; however, from time to time the Company receives claims from federal and state environmental regulatory agencies and entities
asserting that the Company is or may be in violation of certain environmental laws and regulations. Based on its experience in dealing with such
claims in the past and the information currently available to it regarding any potential or outstanding claims, the Company believes that such
claims will not have a material impact on its consolidated financial condition or results of operations. Despite the Company�s compliance and
experience, it is possible that the Company could be held liable for future charges, which might be material but are not currently known or
estimable. In addition, changes in federal and state laws, regulations and requirements or discovery of currently unknown conditions could
require additional expenditures by the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in lawsuits which arose in the normal course of business. In management�s judgment the
ultimate liability, if any, from such legal proceedings will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial position or results of
operations of the Company.

In connection with the Company�s spin-off from TXI, the Company entered into a separation and distribution agreement and a tax sharing and
indemnification agreement with TXI. In these agreements, the Company has agreed to indemnify TXI and its related parties against, among
other things, any liabilities arising out of the businesses, assets or liabilities transferred to the Company and any taxes imposed on TXI in
connection with the spin-off that result from the Company�s breach of its covenants in the tax sharing and indemnification agreement. TXI has
agreed to indemnify the Company and its related parties against, among other things, any liabilities arising out of the businesses, assets or
liabilities retained by TXI and any taxes imposed on the Company in connection with the spin-off that result from TXI�s breach of its covenants
in the tax sharing and indemnification agreement.
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The Company and TXI have made certain covenants to each other in connection with the spin-off that prohibit the Company and TXI from
taking certain actions. Pursuant to these covenants: (1) the Company and TXI will, for a minimum of two years after the distribution date,
continue the active conduct of the steel or cement business, respectively; (2) neither the Company nor TXI will repurchase its stock for two years
following the distribution date of the spin-off except in certain circumstances permitted by the Internal Revenue Service (the �IRS�); (3) neither
the Company nor TXI will take any actions inconsistent with the representations made in the separation and distribution agreement or in
connection with the issuance by tax counsel of its legal opinion with respect to the spin-off; and (4) neither the Company nor TXI will take any
other action that would result in or fail to take any action necessary to prevent any tax being imposed on the spin-off. Each of the Company and
TXI may take actions inconsistent with these covenants if it obtains an unqualified opinion of counsel or a private letter ruling from the IRS that
such actions will not cause the spin-off to become taxable. The Company has satisfied all of the requirements of such covenants applicable to the
implementation of its stock repurchase program announced on October 11, 2006.

10. Retirement Plans

The Company�s employees participate in a defined contribution retirement plan. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company contributed 2% of each
employee�s eligible compensation and a variable contribution based on a predetermined formula established annually. After December 31, 2005,
the Company will contribute 100% of eligible contributions of up to 3% of employee compensation, and 50% of eligible contributions of the
next 2% of employee compensation as defined by the plan. The amount of retirement expense charged to costs and expenses for this plan was
$1.8 million and $1.5 million in the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005.

On July 21, 2005, the Company�s board of directors approved the Chaparral Steel Company financial security plan (�FSP�) a non-qualified defined
benefit plan providing death and retirement benefits to the Company�s executive and key managerial employees who are invited and elect to
participate. The plan is contributory but not funded. Participants elect the amount of their base salary that is covered by the plan. Costs and
associated assets and liabilities related to the Company�s employee participation are included in the financial information contained herein.
Amounts payable to participants are to be paid exclusively from the general assets of the Company and are otherwise unsecured. Life insurance
contracts have been purchased that may be used to fund the FSP payments. These insurance contracts, recorded at their net cash surrender value,
totaled $10.0 million at November 30, 2006 and $8.3 million at May 31, 2006, and are included in investments on the consolidated balance
sheets. The amount of FSP benefit expense and the projected FSP benefit obligation are determined using assumptions as of the end of each
fiscal year. The weighted-average discount rate used was 6% in the six-month period ended November 30, 2006. Actuarial gains or losses are
recognized when incurred. Prior to the spin-off, the Company�s executive and key managerial employees who were invited and elected to do so,
participated in a series of TXI financial security plans which had terms and conditions similar to those of the FSP adopted by the Company.

As of November 30, 2006, the estimated future benefit payments for each of the five succeeding years are $0.2 million, $0.3 million, $0.7
million, $1.0 million and $1.0 million and for the five-year period thereafter an aggregate of $6.0 million.

The amount of FSP benefit expense was as follows (in thousands):

Six months ended

November 30,
2006 2005

Service cost $ 1,012 $ 428
Interest cost 313 212
Recognized actuarial loss 425 �  
Amortization of costs �  8
Participant deferrals (152) (118)

$ 1,598 $ 530
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11. Incentive Plans

All personnel employed by the Company as of May 31 and not subject to production-based incentive or 2006 Plan awards share in the pretax
income of the Company for the year then ended based on predetermined formulas. The duration of the plan is one year. Certain executives are
additionally covered under three-year plans with respect to fiscal years ending May 31, 2007 and 2008. In August 2006, the Company�s executive
officers relinquished their previous participation under the three-year plans with respect to fiscal years ending May 31, 2007 and 2008 and will
participate in new performance awards under the 2006 Plan (see Notes 2 and 7) with respect to the fiscal year ending May 31, 2007. The new
performance awards are payable in cash, shares of common stock or both and are being accrued over the respective vesting periods. New awards
will be subject to annual approval by the Company�s board of directors. Incentive compensation related to these plans is included in selling,
general and administrative expense and was $8.6 million and $3.2 million in the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

12. Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

On July 6, 2005, Chaparral Steel Company (the �Parent Company�) issued $300.0 million principal amount of its 10% senior notes due July 15,
2013. All of the Parent Company�s consolidated domestic subsidiaries have guaranteed the 10% senior notes. The guarantees are full and
unconditional and are joint and several. There are no significant restrictions on the Parent Company�s ability to obtain funds from any of the
guarantor subsidiaries in the form of a dividend or loan. Additionally, there are no significant restrictions on a guarantor subsidiary�s ability to
obtain funds from the Parent Company or its direct or indirect subsidiaries.

The following condensed consolidating balance sheets, condensed consolidating statements of operations and condensed consolidating
statements of cash flows are provided for the Parent Company and all guarantor subsidiaries. The information has been presented as if the Parent
Company accounted for its ownership of the guarantor subsidiaries using the equity method of accounting.
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In thousands

Chaparral

Steel

Company
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-

Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Eliminating

Entries Consolidated
Condensed consolidating balance sheet as of November 30, 2006
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,976 $ 1,592 $ �  $ �  $ 34,568
Short-term investments 289,150 �  �  �  289,150
Accounts receivable �  170,743 �  �  170,743
Intercompany receivables �  381,348 �  (381,348) �  
Inventories �  190,951 �  �  190,951
Prepaid expenses 314 6,351 �  �  6,665

Total current assets 322,440 750,985 �  (381,348) 692,077

Goodwill �  85,166 �  �  85,166
Investments and deferred charges 17,784 �  �  �  17,784
Investments in subsidiaries 1,160,439 �  �  (1,160,439) �  
Property, plant and equipment - net 579,280 �  �  579,280

Total assets $ 1,500,663 $ 1,415,431 $ �  $ (1,541,787) $ 1,374,307

Trade accounts payable $ 261 $ 74,860 $ �  $ �  $ 75,121
Intercompany payables 381,348 �  �  (381,348) �  
Accrued wages, taxes and other liabilities 14,495 37,061 �  �  51,556

Total current liabilities 396,104 111,921 �  (381,348) 126,677

Deferred income taxes and other credits 6,167 143,071 �  �  149,238
Long-term debt 300,000 �  �  �  300,000
Stockholders� equity 798,392 1,160,439 �  (1,160,439) 798,392

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 1,500,663 $ 1,415,431 $ �  $ (1,541,787) $ 1,374,307

Condensed consolidating balance sheet as of May 31, 2006
Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,939 $ 6,644 $  �  $ �  $ 42,583
Short-term investments 164,000 �  �  �  164,000
Accounts receivable �  159,721 �  �  159,721
Intercompany receivables �  251,985 �  (251,985) �  
Inventories �  159,803 �  �  159,803
Prepaid expenses 173 7,292 �  �  7,465

Total current assets 200,112 585,445 �  (251,985) 533,572

Goodwill �  85,166 �  �  85,166
Investments and deferred charges 16,807 �  �  �  16,807
Investments in subsidiaries 1,026,771 �  �  (1,026,771) �  
Property, plant and equipment - net �  593,977 �  �  593,977

Total assets $ 1,243,690 $ 1,264,588 $ �  $ (1,278,756) $ 1,229,522

Trade accounts payable $ 179 $ 49,800 $ �  $ �  $ 49,979
Intercompany payables 251,985 �  �  (251,985) �  
Accrued wages, taxes and other liabilities 17,620 37,772 �  �  55,392

Total current liabilities 269,784 87,572 �  (251,985) 105,371

Deferred income taxes and other credits 5,400 150,245 �  �  155,645
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Long-term debt 300,000 �  �  �  300,000
Stockholders� equity 668,506 1,026,771 �  (1,026,771) 668,506

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 1,243,690 $ 1,264,588 $ �  $ (1,278,756) $ 1,229,522
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In thousands

Chaparral

Steel

Company

Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-

Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Eliminating

Entries Consolidated
Condensed consolidating statement of operations for the three
months ended November 30, 2006
Net sales $ �  $ 403,377 $ �  $ �  $ 403,377

Costs and expenses (income)
Cost of products sold �  288,184 �  �  288,184
Selling, general and administrative 849 13,240 �  �  14,089
Interest 7,918 �  �  �  7,918
Other income (2,860) (4,882) �  �  (7,742)

5,907 296,542 �  �  302,449

Income (loss) before income taxes (5,907) 106,835 �  �  100,928
Income taxes (benefit) (3,176) 36,637 �  �  33,461

(2,731) 70,198 �  �  67,467

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 70,198 �  �  (70,198) �  

Net income $ 67,467 $ 70,198 $ �  $ (70,198) $ 67,467

Condensed consolidating statement of operations for the three
months ended November 30, 2005
Net sales $ �  $  348,130 $  �  $ �  $  348,130

Costs and expenses (income)
Cost of products sold �  283,247 �  �  283,247
Selling, general and administrative 159 9,325 �  �  9,484
Interest 7,982 �  �  �  7,982
Other income (551) (3,540) �  �  (4,091)

7,590 289,032 �  �  296,622

Income (loss) before income taxes (7,590) 59,098 �  �  51,508
Income taxes (benefit) (2,656) 20,161 �  �  17,505

(4,934) 38,937 �  �  34,003

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 38,937 �  �  (38,937) �  

Net income $ 34,003 $ 38,937 $ �  $ (38,937) $ 34,003
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In thousands

Chaparral
Steel

Company
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
Eliminating

Entries Consolidated
Condensed consolidating statement of operations for the six
months ended November 30, 2006
Net sales $ �  $ 814,026 $ �  $ �  $ 814,026

Costs and expenses (income)
Cost of products sold �  594,952 �  �  594,952
Selling, general and administrative 1,553 23,195 �  �  24,748
Interest 15,964 �  �  �  15,964
Other income (5,329) (5,900) �  �  (11,229)

12,188 612,247 �  �  624,435

Income (loss) before income taxes (12,188) 201,779 �  �  189,591
Income taxes (benefit) (6,127) 69,164 �  �  63,037

(6,061) 132,615 �  �  126,554

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 132,615 �  �  (132,615) �  

Net income $ 126,554 $ 132,615 $ �  $ (132,615) $ 126,554

Condensed consolidating statement of operations for the six
months ended November 30, 2005
Net sales $ �  $  686,535 $  �  $ �  $  686,535

Costs and expenses (income)
Cost of products sold �  580,441 �  �  580,441
Selling, general and administrative 164 16,759 �  �  16,923
Interest 13,300 2,846 �  �  16,146
Other income (588) (4,805) �  �  (5,393)

12,876 595,241 �  �  608,117

Income (loss) before income taxes (12,876) 91,294 �  �  78,418
Income taxes (benefit) (4,506) 31,170 �  �  26,664

(8,370) 60,124 �  �  51,754

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 60,124 �  �  (60,124) �  

Net income $ 51,754 $ 60,124 $ �  $ (60,124) $ 51,754

23

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 33



Table of Contents

In thousands

Chaparral
Steel

Company
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
Eliminating

Entries Consolidated
Condensed consolidating statement of cash flows for the
six months ended November 30, 2006

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (7,301) $ 133,683 $ �  $ �  $ 126,382

Investing activities
Capital expenditures �  (9,409) �  �  (9,409)
Purchases of short-term investments (6,431,360) �  �  �  (6,431,360)
Sales of short-term investments 6,306,210 �  �  �  6,306,210
Intercompany advances 129,443 (129,443) �  �  �  
Other-net (607) 117 �  �  (490)

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 3,686 (138,735) �  �  (135,049)

Financing activities
Issuance of common stock 698 �  �  �  698
Tax benefits from exercise of stock options 4,589 �  �  �  4,589
Common dividends paid (4,635) �  �  �  (4,635)

Net cash provided by financing activities 652 �  �  �  652

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,963) (5,052) �  �  (8,015)
Cash and cash equivalents at at beginning of period 35,939 6,644 �  �  42,583

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 32,976 $ 1,592 $ �  $ �  $ 34,568

Condensed consolidating statement of cash flows for the
six months ended November 30, 2005

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 12,212 $ 148,878 $ �  $ �  $ 161,090

Investing activities
Capital expenditures �  (8,128) �  �  (8,128)
Purchases of short-term investments (317,130) �  �  �  (317,130)
Sales of short-term investments 274,355 �  �  �  274,355
Intercompany advances 147,590 (147,590) �  �  �  
Other-net �  (595) �  �  (595)

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 104,815 (156,313) �  �  (51,498)

Financing activities
Long-term borrowings 350,000 �  �  �  350,000
Debt issuance costs (9,469) �  �  �  (9,469)
Debt retirements (50,000) �  �  �  (50,000)
Issuance of common stock 24 �  �  �  24
Tax benefits from exercise of stock options 2,337 �  �  �  2,337
Dividend paid to Texas Industries, Inc. (341,139) �  �  �  (341,139)

Net cash used by financing activities (48,247) �  �  �  (48,247)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 68,780 (7,435) �  �  61,345
Cash and cash equivalents at at beginning of period 1 9,286 �  �  9,287

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 68,781 $ 1,851 $ �  $ �  $ 70,632
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding notes included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report. Certain statements contained in this Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. See
�Forward-Looking Statements.� Such statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, which could cause actual results to differ
materially from future results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.

Overview

We are a leading supplier of structural steel and steel bar products through a single business segment. We produce and sell structural steel, piling
products, special bar quality products, merchant bar quality rounds, reinforcing bar and channels from facilities located in Texas and Virginia.
Structural steel products include wide flange beams, channels, piling products and other shapes. Steel bar products include specialty bar products
and, to a lesser extent, reinforcing bar. We sell to steel service centers and steel fabricators for use in the construction industry, as well as to cold
finishers, forgers and original equipment manufacturers for use in the railroad, defense, automotive, manufactured housing and energy
industries. Our products are marketed throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico, and to a limited extent in Europe. All of our long-lived
assets are located in the United States.

Our sales prices closely track domestic steel industry sales prices and are market based. Domestic demand for structural steel is derived
primarily from non-residential construction. Therefore, a significant percentage of our sales are attributable to the level of non-residential
construction activity in the United States. The level of activity in non-residential construction is cyclical and is influenced by prevailing
economic conditions, including interest rate levels, inflation, consumer spending habits and employment. In addition, we compete in a global
steel industry and domestic prices are significantly influenced by global industry prices. The global steel industry has at times in the past been
characterized by overcapacity, which can result in high levels of steel imports into the United States, exerting downward pressure on domestic
steel prices. However, in the recent past, world-wide steel and steel scrap demand has risen. Increased steel demand and the relatively weak U.S.
dollar have helped curb imports into the United States. These domestic and global factors have combined to produce historically high selling
prices.

Our business requires large amounts of capital investment, raw materials, energy, labor and maintenance, and our future success depends on
continued access to these resources. At full capacity, our annual steel scrap usage would be 3.4 million tons, which would represent
approximately 6% of the U.S. scrap market. We make predominately all steel scrap purchases on the open market where prices are subject to
market forces beyond our control. A major portion of the shredded steel requirements of our Texas plant is produced by an on-site shredder
operation primarily utilizing crushed auto bodies purchased on the open market. We believe our shredding operations give us a competitive
advantage by providing usable scrap at reduced cost compared to similarly prepared scrap available on the open market. The geographical
market that supplies the Texas plant provides some protection from sharply higher raw material prices caused in part by favorable global market
conditions. Our Virginia plant receives scrap from our on-site shredding facility which is operated by an unrelated party. We attempt to negotiate
the best prices for our raw materials and to obtain prices for our steel products that match market price movements in response to supply and
demand. Beginning in January 2004, we implemented a raw material surcharge program, derived from a published scrap price index, designed to
pass some of the increased costs associated with rising raw material prices through to customers. We believe there will be adequate sources of
our principal raw materials to meet our near term needs, although probably at higher prices than has historically been the case.

Steel mini-mills consume large amounts of electricity and natural gas. The electric industry has been deregulated in Texas since January 2002.
The Texas plant purchases electricity through a local retail electric provider using various long and short term supply arrangements. We have
entered into agreements to purchase minimum amounts of electricity and natural gas for our Texas and Virginia facilities. As of November 30,
2006, our remaining commitments under these agreements are through February 2007 for natural gas in Texas and March 2007 for natural gas in
Virginia. The Commonwealth of Virginia is in transition to a deregulated market for electricity. Electricity for the Virginia plant is purchased
through the local utility under an interruptible supply contract with periodic adjustments for fuel costs. Natural gas is purchased from local gas
marketers and delivered to our plants through local transportation agreements. Historically, we have not used financial instruments to mitigate
price fluctuations on such purchases, however we may use such financial instruments when appropriate. We believe adequate supplies of
electricity and natural gas are readily available, although some fluctuations will occur.
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Various Aspects of Spin-Off from TXI

We became an independent public company on July 29, 2005, as a result of our spin-off from TXI. When we were a subsidiary of TXI, TXI
utilized a centralized cash management program for all of its subsidiaries through which we received payments from TXI as a result of cash
received from product sales or made payments to TXI or its subsidiaries for purchases of materials or services or for costs incurred on our
behalf, including raw material procurement, payroll and capital expenditures. As a result of the spin-off, we are no longer part of this program.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include all costs of our steel business. For periods prior to July 30, 2005, these costs
include the allocation of certain corporate expenses from TXI. TXI�s corporate expenses were allocated to us based on either the percentage of
time employees incurred performing services for us or specifically identified costs incurred by TXI for us. Management believes the allocations
were made on a reasonable basis. However, the consolidated financial statements for periods prior to the spin off may not necessarily reflect our
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in the future.

TXI, through one of its subsidiaries, previously provided us with common carrier services, transporting finished product to our customers and
backhauling materials and supplies for us. For periods prior to July 30, 2005, these costs have been included in cost of products sold in our
consolidated statements of operations and were $0.6 million in the six-month period ended November 30, 2005. We believe the rates charged to
us for transportation services approximate the rates that would have been charged by third parties. For periods subsequent to July 29, 2005, we
are utilizing assets transferred to us by TXI to operate our own common carrier service.

Since 1986, TXI included our operations in its United States consolidated federal income tax return. TXI also included us with it or certain of its
subsidiaries in consolidated, combined or unitary income tax groups for state tax purposes as required by law. The provision (benefit) for
deferred income taxes for the periods presented has been determined as if we had filed separate tax returns. TXI managed its tax position for the
benefit of its entire portfolio of businesses and its tax strategies are not necessarily reflective of the tax strategies we will follow.

At various times, items of intercompany indebtedness were settled between and among us and our subsidiaries and TXI and its subsidiaries.
These intercompany accounts were settled through offsets, contributions of such indebtedness to our capital and other non-cash transfers. During
the six months ended November 30, 2006, an adjustment of $1.1 million was recorded increasing the previous contributions to our capital by
TXI.
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Results of Operations

Three-month period ended November 30, 2006 compared to the three-month period ended November 30, 2005.

(In thousands except per ton data)

Three months ended

November 30,
Change % Change2006 2005

Net sales
Structural mills $ 313,987 $ 259,530 $ 54,457 21.0%
Bar mill 55,133 58,408 (3,275) (5.6%)
Other products 13,062 9,084 3,978 43.8%
Delivery fees 21,195 21,108 87 0.4%

Total $ 403,377 $ 348,130 $ 55,247 15.9%

Units shipped (tons)
Structural 458 449 9 2.0%
Bar 83 99 (16) (16.2)%

Total 541 548 (7) (1.3)%

Average sales price per ton
Structural $ 686 $ 578 $ 108 18.7%
Bar 661 590 71 12.0%
Total 682 580 102 17.6%
Net sales $ 403,377 $ 348,130 $ 55,247 15.9%
Costs and expenses (income)
Cost of products sold 288,184 283,247 4,937 1.7%
Selling, general and administrative 14,089 9,484 4,605 48.6%
Interest 7,918 7,982 (64) (0.8%)
Other income, net (7,742) (4,091) (3,651) 89.2%

302,449 296,622 5,827 2.0%

Income before income taxes 100,928 51,508 49,420 95.9%
Income taxes 33,461 17,505 15,956 91.2%

Net income $ 67,467 $ 34,003 $ 33,464 98.4%

Net sales. Net sales increased $55.2 million to $403.4 million from the prior year period. Shipments of 541,000 tons were comparable to levels
in the prior year period as demand for structural products remained strong in both domestic and international markets. Average selling price for
structural products continued to improve in the current year period and were $108 higher than the prior year period while bar product prices
increased 12.0% reflecting a higher mix of special bar quality shipments. The increase in pricing for steel products accounted for approximately
$55.0 million of increased net sales, while decreased shipping volumes accounted for approximately $3.8 million of decreased net sales. Net
sales of other products increased by $4.0 million to $13.1 million due to higher selling prices for non-ferrous metals. Delivery fees increased by
0.4% due to slightly higher costs partially offset by lower shipments. We expect that end user demand for our products will remain strong for the
remainder of this fiscal year.
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Cost of products sold. Cost of products sold including depreciation and amortization was $288.2 million, an increase of $4.9 million from the
prior year period. The increase was due primarily to a 2% increase in per ton costs. Per ton scrap costs were $18 higher than the prior year period
while per ton energy costs were lower than the prior year period due to lower market prices and the short-term energy contract at the Texas
facility.

Selling, general and administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense increased $4.6 million from the prior year period due to
increases in incentive expense of $3.2 million due to increased profits, equity compensation expense of $0.5 million and general corporate
expenses of $0.9 million.

Interest. Interest expense of $7.9 million was comparable to the prior year period and was reflective of our capitalization structure described in
note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.

Other income, net. Other income, net increased by $3.7 million to $7.7 million and includes $4.1 million of insurance recovery from a business
interruption claim stemming from an outage of the rolling mill at our Virginia facility that occurred during the three months ended August 31,
2006. In addition, an increase in interest income of $2.3 million was offset by a decrease of $2.7 million in miscellaneous sales and other items
from the prior year period.

Income taxes. Income taxes for the three-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005, have been included in the accompanying financial
statements on the basis of an estimated annual rate of 33.2% and 34.0%, respectively. The primary reason that these respective tax rates differ
from the 35% statutory federal corporate rate is due to the deduction for qualified domestic production activities. The provision for income taxes
of $33.5 million increased $16.0 million from the prior year period primarily due to the increase in pretax profits.

Net income. Net income improved $33.5 million to $67.5 million from the prior year period primarily due to the increase in selling prices
discussed above.

28

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 40



Table of Contents

Six-month period ended November 30, 2006 compared to the six-month period ended November 30, 2005.

(In thousands except per ton data)

Six months ended

November 30,
2006 2005 Change % Change

Net sales
Structural mills $ 627,576 $ 509,569 $ 118,007 23.2%
Bar mill 113,169 119,171 (6,002) (5.0)%
Other products 29,098 17,698 11,400 64.4%
Delivery fees 44,183 40,097 4,086 10.2%

Total $ 814,026 $ 686,535 $ 127,491 18.6%

Units shipped (tons)
Structural 936 942 (6) (0.6)%
Bar 172 209 (37) (17.7)%

Total 1,108 1,151 (43) (3.7)%

Average sales price per ton
Structural $ 671 $ 541 $ 130 24.0%
Bar 658 571 87 15.2%
Total 669 546 123 22.5%
Net sales $ 814,026 $ 686,535 $ 127,491 18.6%
Costs and expenses (income)
Cost of products sold 594,952 580,441 14,511 2.5%
Selling, general and administrative 24,748 16,923 7,825 46.2%
Interest 15,964 16,146 (182) (1.1)%
Other income, net (11,229) (5,393) (5,836) 108.2%

624,435 608,117 16,318 2.7%

Income before income taxes 189,591 78,418 111,173 141.8%
Income taxes 63,037 26,664 36,373 136.4%

Net income $ 126,554 $ 51,754 $ 74,800 144.5%

Net sales. Net sales increased $127.5 million to $814.0 million from the prior year period. Shipments of 1,108,000 tons decreased 3.7% from the
record levels in the prior year. Average selling price for structural products were $130 higher than the prior year period reflecting the strong
demand in both domestic and international markets. Bar product prices increased 15.2% reflecting increased pricing and a higher mix of special
bar quality shipments. The increase in pricing for steel products accounted for approximately $135.5 million of increased net sales, while
decreased shipping volumes accounted for approximately $23.5 million of decreased net sales. Net sales of other products increased by $11.4
million to $29.1 million due to higher selling prices for non-ferrous metals. Delivery fees increased by 10.2% due to higher fuel costs.
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Cost of products sold. Cost of products sold including depreciation and amortization was $595.0 million, an increase of $14.5 million from the
prior year period. The increase was due primarily to a 5.7% increase in per ton costs offset by a 3.7% decrease in shipments from the prior year
period. Per ton scrap costs were 24% higher while per ton energy costs were $21 lower than the prior year period due to lower market prices and
the short-term energy contract at the Texas facility.

Selling, general and administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense increased $7.8 million from the prior year period due to
increases in incentive expense of $5.4 million due to increased profits, equity compensation expense of $1.2 million and general corporate
expenses of $1.2 million.

Interest. Interest expense of $15.9 million decreased $0.2 million from the prior year period and was reflective of our capitalization structure
described in note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.

Other income, net. Other income, net increased by $5.8 million to $11.2 million and includes $4.1 million of insurance recovery from a business
interruption claim stemming from an outage of the rolling mill at our Virginia facility that occurred during the three months ended August 31,
2006. In addition, an increase in interest income of $4.7 million was offset by a decrease of $3.0 million in miscellaneous sales and other items
from the prior year period.

Income taxes. Income taxes for the six-month periods ended November 30, 2006 and 2005, have been included in the accompanying financial
statements on the basis of an estimated annual rate of 33.3% and 34.0%, respectively. The primary reason that these respective tax rates differ
from the 35% statutory federal corporate rate is due to the deduction for qualified domestic production activities. The provision for income taxes
of $63.0 million increased $36.4 million from the prior year period primarily due to the increase in pretax profits.

Net income. Net income improved $74.8 million to $126.6 million from the prior year period primarily due to the increase in selling prices
discussed above.
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Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net working capital at November 30, 2006 increased $137.2 million to $565.4 million from May 31, 2006, reflecting a $158.5 million increase
in current assets and a $21.3 million increase in current liabilities. Significant changes in the components of current assets included an increase
in short-term investments of $125.2 million as a result of improved operating results. Accounts receivable increased $11.0 million partially due
to a $5.3 million Virginia facility insurance claim collected in December 2006. Inventories increased $31.1 million as raw material and finished
goods volumes increased from May 2006 levels. Trade accounts payable increased $25.1 million due to higher volumes of raw material
purchases in the month of November 2006.

In June 2005, we entered into our Credit Facility which provides up to $150.0 million of available borrowings and in July 2005, we issued
$300.0 million aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes. We used $50.0 million of borrowings from our Credit Facility and the net
proceeds from our Senior Notes to pay a cash dividend of $341.1 million to Texas Industries, Inc. on July 6, 2005 in connection with the
spin-off. We had no outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility during the six months ended November 30, 2006; however, $3.2 million of
the facility was utilized to support letters of credit. The amount borrowed under the Credit Facility will fluctuate based upon our cash flow and
working capital needs.

In addition to cash and cash equivalents of $34.6 million and short-term investments of $289.2 million at November 30, 2006, our primary
sources of liquidity are cash provided from operations and borrowings available under the Credit Facility. We fund working capital requirements
and capital expenditures primarily with cash from operations. In addition, we lease certain mobile and other equipment used in our operations
under operating leases that in the normal course of business are renewed or replaced by subsequent leases.

We believe the net cash provided by our operating activities, existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments, supplemented as
necessary with borrowings under the Credit Facility, will provide sufficient resources to meet our working capital requirements, capital
expenditures, debt service and other cash needs over the next year.

Cash flows

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased $34.7 million in the six-month period ended November 30, 2006 to $126.4 million,
compared to the prior year period. Net income and the related effect of deferred income taxes increased cash flows $68.4 million compared to
the prior year period. A decrease in cash provided by changes in inventories of $98.6 million was due to higher volumes of raw material
purchases in November 2006 and a depletion in finished goods inventory levels in the prior year period. Cash provided by the change in
accounts payable increased $31.2 million primarily due to the raw material purchases in November 2006.

Net cash used by investing activities was $135.0 million in the current year period compared to $51.5 million in the prior year period. In the
current year period, purchases of short-term investments used cash of $6.4 billion and sales of short-term investments provided cash of $6.3
billion. In the prior year period, purchases of short-term investments used cash of $317.1 million and sales of short-term investments provided
cash of $274.4 million. Capital expenditures were $9.4 million in the current year period and $8.1 million in the prior year period. Capital
expenditures for normal replacement and improvement of our existing equipment are currently estimated to be approximately $25 million over
the next 12 months.

Net cash provided by financing activities consisted of the issuance of common stock for the exercise of stock options of $0.7 million and a tax
benefit from the exercise of stock options of $4.6 million in the current year period. On October 11, 2006, our board of directors initiated a
quarterly cash dividend of $0.10 per common share. A dividend of $4.6 million was paid on November 15, 2006 to stockholders of record as of
the close of business on November 1, 2006. On October 11, 2006, our board of directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the
repurchase of up to $100 million of our common stock. Prior to any repurchase, the board must be advised and approve the terms of the
proposed repurchase. No shares of our common stock were repurchased in the three months ended November 30, 2006. Net cash used by
financing activities in the prior year period was $48.2 million which consisted of long-term borrowings of $350.0 million, debt retirements of
$50.0 million, debt issuance costs of $9.5 million under our Credit Facility and Senior Notes described below and a tax benefit from the exercise
of stock options of $2.3 million. In conjunction with our spin-off, we paid a cash dividend to Texas Industries, Inc. of $341.1 million in the prior
year period.
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Prior to our spin-off from TXI, net cash provided by operating activities included the effects of TXI�s centralized cash management program for
all of its subsidiaries, through which we received advances from and made transfers to TXI depending on our cash requirements. Prior to our
spin-off from TXI, these transactions were treated as amounts payable to and receivable from TXI.

Impact of the distribution and separation from TXI

On June 16, 2005, we entered into our senior secured revolving credit facility (the �Credit Facility�) which provides up to $150.0 million of
available borrowings. The Credit Facility includes a $25.0 million sub-limit for letters of credit of which $3.2 million was outstanding at
November 30, 2006. Any outstanding letters of credit are deducted from the borrowing availability under the Credit Facility. Amounts drawn
under the Credit Facility bear interest either at the LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.00% to 1.75%, or at a base rate (which will be the higher of the
federal funds rate plus 0.5% and the prime rate) plus a margin of up to 1%. The interest rate margins are subject to adjustments based on our
leverage ratio. The commitment fee calculated on the unused portion of the Credit Facility ranges from 0.25% to 0.5% per year based on our
leverage ratio. The Credit Facility matures June 16, 2010 and may be terminated by us at any time. The Credit Facility is secured by security
interests in all of our existing and future accounts and inventory, certain related personal property and in all of the equity interest in our present
and future domestic subsidiaries and 66% of the equity interest in our present and future foreign subsidiaries. The Credit Facility contains
covenants restricting, among other things, prepayment or redemption of our other debt, distributions, dividends, and repurchases of capital stock
and other equity interests, acquisitions and investments, indebtedness, liens and affiliate transactions. We are required to comply with certain
financial tests and to maintain certain financial ratios, such as leverage and interest coverage ratios. The amount borrowed under the Credit
Facility will fluctuate based upon our cash flow and working capital needs.

In addition, on July 6, 2005, we issued $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of 10% senior notes due July 15, 2013 in a private offering.
On December 2, 2005, the we completed the offer to exchange senior notes due 2013 (the �Senior Notes�), which are registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, for the outstanding 10% senior notes due 2013 that were issued in the private offering. The terms of the
registered Senior Notes are substantially identical to our previously outstanding senior notes. The Senior Notes are unsecured and will
effectively be subordinated in right of payment to all of our existing and future senior secured debt, including borrowings under our Credit
Facility The indenture governing the Senior Notes contains covenants limiting our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to, among other
things, incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends or make other distributions or repurchase or redeem stock, make investments, sell assets,
incur liens, enter into agreements restricting our subsidiaries� ability to pay dividends, enter into transactions with affiliates and consolidate,
merge or sell all or substantially all of our assets or the assets of our subsidiaries. Interest is due semi-annually on January 15th and July 15th. As
of November 30, 2006, we were in compliance with all loan covenants.

We used the net proceeds from $50.0 million of borrowings under the Credit Facility and the $300 million of Senior Notes to pay a cash
dividend of $341.1 million to Texas Industries, Inc. on July 6, 2005.

Any intercompany accounts with TXI that remained immediately prior to the spin-off distribution on July 29, 2005 were contributed to our
capital. On July 29, 2005, the spin-off was completed in the form of a pro-rata, tax-free dividend to TXI stockholders of one share of our
common stock for each share of TXI stock owned on July 20, 2005. Although pursuant to our separation and distribution agreement with TXI
and certain ancillary agreements, TXI has agreed to indemnify us against certain liabilities and we have agreed to indemnify TXI against certain
liabilities, TXI has no further ownership interest in us, and we have no ownership interest in TXI. In addition, we are not a guarantor of any of
TXI�s indebtedness and TXI is not a guarantor of any of our indebtedness. Our relationship with TXI is now governed by the separation and
distribution agreement and the ancillary agreements described in that agreement. During the six months ended November 30, 2006, an
adjustment of $1.1 million was recorded increasing the previous contributions to our capital by TXI.
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Other Items

Critical accounting policies. The preparation of financial statements and accompanying notes in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported. Changes in the facts and circumstances
could have a significant impact on the resulting financial statements.

Effective June 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), �Share-Based Payments,� using the modified
prospective application method. Under this modified prospective method, compensation cost recognized for the six months ended November 30,
2006 includes the applicable amounts of compensation cost of stock-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of June 1, 2006 based
on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123 and previously presented in pro forma
footnote disclosures. The impact of recognizing compensation expense related to stock options using the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS 123(R) was $0.5 million (net of tax benefit of $0.1 million) or $0.01 per common share for the three-month period ended November 30,
2006 and $0.9 million (net of tax benefit of $0.2 million) or $0.02 per common share for the six-month period ended November 30, 2006.
Results for periods prior to June 1, 2006, have not been restated.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, �Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,� which became effective for us
beginning June 1, 2006. This standard clarifies that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material should
be expensed as incurred and not included in inventory. In addition, this standard requires that the allocation of fixed production overhead costs to
inventory be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. The adoption of this standard did not have a significant effect on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Additional critical accounting policies that affect management�s more complex judgments and estimates are described in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2006.

Off-balance sheet arrangements. We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect
on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues, expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources that is material to investors.

Environmental matters. We are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations concerning, among other matters, air
emissions, furnace dust disposal and wastewater discharge. We believe we are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations; however, from time to time we receive claims from federal and state environmental regulatory agencies and entities asserting that
we are or may be in violation of certain environmental laws and regulations. Based on our experience in dealing with such claims in the past and
the information currently available to us regarding any potential or outstanding claims, we believe that such claims will not have a material
impact on our financial condition or results of operations. Despite our compliance and experience, it is possible that we could be held liable for
future charges which might be material but are not currently known or estimable. However, changes in federal or state laws, regulations or
requirements or discovery of currently unknown conditions could require additional expenditures by us.

Inflation. We believe inflation has not had a material effect on our results of operations.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Market Risk

We have not entered into derivatives or other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

On June 16, 2005, we entered into the Credit Facility which provides up to $150 million of available borrowings. Amounts drawn under the
Credit Facility bear interest either at the LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.00% to 1.75%, or at a base rate (which will be the higher of the federal
funds rate plus 0.50% and the prime rate) plus a margin of up to 1.00%. The interest rate margins are subject to adjustments based on our
leverage ratio. Accordingly, fluctuations in interest rates will impact the interest we pay on borrowings under this Credit Facility. On July 6,
2005, we also issued $300 million of our Senior Notes. Although fluctuations in interest rates will not impact the interest we pay on this debt, it
would impact the fair value of this debt.

33

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 45



Table of Contents

In the normal course of our business, we are exposed to market risk for price fluctuations related to the sale of steel products and to the purchase
of commodities used in the steel production process, principally scrap steel, electricity and natural gas. We attempt to negotiate the best prices
for our raw materials and energy requirements and to obtain prices for our steel products that match market price movements in response to
supply and demand. Beginning in January 2004, we implemented a raw material surcharge program, derived from a published scrap price index,
designed to pass some of the increased costs associated with rising raw material prices through to customers.

Steel mini-mills consume large amounts of electricity and natural gas. The electric industry has been deregulated in Texas since January 2002.
The Texas plant purchases electricity through a local retail electric provider using various long and short term supply arrangements. The
Commonwealth of Virginia is in transition to a deregulated market for electricity. Electricity for the Virginia plant is purchased through the local
utility under an interruptible supply contract with periodic adjustments for fuel costs. Natural gas is purchased from local gas marketers and
delivered to our plants through local transportation agreements. Historically, we have not used financial instruments to mitigate price
fluctuations on such purchases; however we may use such financial instruments when appropriate.

We have not engaged in formal hedging activities to mitigate risks associated with fluctuations in currency values, but we do periodically review
the potential impact of this risk to ensure that the risk of significant potential losses is minimized.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the specified time periods. As of the period covered
by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer evaluated, with the participation of our
management, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)). Based on
the evaluation, which disclosed no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective. There were no significant changes in our internal controls and
procedures in our most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over
financial reporting.

In connection with our spin-off from TXI on July 29, 2005, responsibility for all of our corporate accounting, finance and internal audit
functions was transferred from personnel at TXI to our personnel. We have created our own, or engaged third parties to provide these functions
to replace those previously performed by TXI. These changes, although significant, are not expected to materially affect our internal control over
financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

The information required by this item is included in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, �Legal Proceedings and Contingent Liabilities�
presented in Part I and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

No material changes have occurred to our indicated risk factors as disclosed in our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July 24, 2006.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

None.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.

None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

None.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION.

At its January 11-12, 2007 meetings, our board of directors authorized the following agreements and amended agreements to make our benefit
and employment plans more competitive with current industry standards.

Financial Security Plan. During its meetings on January 11-12, 2007, our board of directors approved the amendment and restatement of our
previously approved Financial Security Plan (see, Part II. Other Information, Item 5 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended November 30, 2005 and Exhibit 10.8 attached thereto) (the �FSP�).

The FSP is a nonqualified defined benefit plan providing death and retirement benefits to our officers (including all of our executive officers)
and key managerial employees who are invited and elect to participate. The plan is unfunded. Amounts payable to participants are to be paid
exclusively from our general assets and are otherwise unsecured. Our obligations pursuant to the FSP are (i) partially offset by life insurance
contracts purchased by us on the lives of participants and (ii) based upon the amount of annual base salary (either 50% or 100%) selected by the
participant (�Covered Salary�) and deferrals of a portion of each participant�s base salary. Benefits payable pursuant to the FSP are primarily
dependent upon the amount of Covered Salary selected by the participant. FSP benefits generally vest over a period of 5 years at the rate of
20% per year.

Pursuant to the FSP, upon retirement of a participant, we are obligated to pay (i) retirement benefits to each participant and/or their designated
beneficiary(ies) for a period generally equal to the greater of the life of the participant or a period of 180 months (measured from the participant�s
date of retirement) and (ii) a death benefit equal to 25% of the participant�s Covered Salary. However, with respect to certain participants who
were members of the Texas Industries, Inc. Financial Security Plan (the �TXI FSP�) and have accrued a lump sum benefit of up to ten times the
participant�s Covered Salary, we are obligated to pay (A) 90% of such lump sum benefit to each participant and/or their designated
beneficiary(ies) in the form of monthly installments equal to no more than 80% of the participant�s monthly Covered Salary until such benefits
have been paid out in full and (ii) a death benefit equal to 10% of the lump sum benefit. The amount of the retirement benefit payable to each
participant is expressed as a percentage of each participant�s Covered Salary (or as a specific dollar amount for certain grandfathered participants
who previously participated in the TXI FSP) and is therefore different for each participant.

Under certain circumstances, participants are entitled to an early retirement benefit (the �Early Retirement Benefit�) at age 60. The amount of the
Early Retirement Benefit will be computed as a pro-rata portion of the normal retirement benefit.

Under certain circumstances, permanently disabled participants are entitled to receive a pro-rated retirement benefit upon attaining early
retirement age or normal retirement age.

Pursuant to the FSP, if a participant dies prior to retirement, we are obligated to pay a death benefit to such participant in an amount equal to the
greater of the Early Retirement Benefit otherwise payable to such participant or 100% of the participant�s Covered Salary for the first 12 months
after such death and 50% of the such Covered Salary for the next 108 months or until the participant�s normal retirement age, whichever is later.

The January 2007 amendments allow participants to elect early retirement (with reduced benefits) at age 55. The January 2007 amendments also
shorten the Financial Security Plan, eliminate duplicative provisions and enhance its �readability.�
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Employment Agreement. During its meetings on January 11-12, 2007, our board of directors approved the amendment and restatement of our
employment agreement with Tommy A. Valenta (our President and Chief Executive Officer) (the �Employment Agreement�) (see, Part II. Other
Information, Item 5 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2005 and Exhibit 10.9 attached thereto).

Prior to the January 2007 amendments, the principal terms of the Employment Agreement were as follows:

� three year term (subject to automatic renewal for additional one-year periods on each anniversary of its execution, unless notice of non-renewal
is given at least 30 days prior to such anniversary);

� base salary of $600,000 per year;

� participation in all incentive plans in which our executive officers participate;

� two year non-compete covenant;

� provision of a ten (10) year level term life insurance policy of five (5) times Mr. Valenta�s base salary (Mr. Valenta has the right to designate the
beneficiary and the policy will be assigned to Mr. Valenta upon his termination of employment);

� disability payments as follows: (i) an amount equal to Mr. Valenta�s base salary for the remainder of the term of the Employment Agreement at
the rate in effect for the year immediately preceding his disability, (ii) long-term disability benefits pursuant to the terms of any long-term
disability policy provided to our senior executives in which Mr. Valenta has elected to participate, (iii) payment of any benefits payable pursuant
to the terms of the benefit plans in which Mr. Valenta is a participant, and (iv) payment (in a lump sum) (with respect to each fiscal year that
ends during the remaining term of the Employment Agreement) of incentive compensation in an amount equal to the amount of incentive
compensation paid to Mr. Valenta during the year immediately preceding his disability; and

� upon any breach of the Employment Agreement by us and termination of the Employment Agreement by Mr. Valenta, Mr. Valenta will be
entitled to receive payment of his base salary (in a lump sum) for the remainder of the term of the Employment Agreement; payment (in a lump
sum) of incentive compensation for each of our fiscal years ending during the remainder of the term of the Employment Agreement (computed
based upon the incentive compensation paid during the fiscal year immediately preceding our breach of the Employment Agreement); immediate
vesting of all un-expired, un-forfeited and un-exercised equity awards held by Mr. Valenta; and continued medical benefits for the remainder of
the term of the Employment Agreement.

The January 2007 amendments made the following changes to the Employment Agreement:

� extended Mr. Valenta�s previous two year non-compete covenant to be a three year non-compete covenant;

� amended the Employment Agreement to cause it to automatically renew on a daily basis, until notice of intent to terminate is given by either
party, so that upon delivery of any such notice the Employment Agreement will have a three year term;

� amended the Employment Agreement to allow Mr. Valenta to resign and receive a Non-Compete Payment (described below) following notice
of non-renewal of the Employment Agreement sent to Mr. Valenta by the Company;

� defined the elements comprising the Non-Compete Payment as (i) payment of the base salary otherwise payable to Mr. Valenta for the
remainder of the term of the Employment Agreement, (ii) payment of incentive compensation (in an amount equal to the highest incentive
compensation payment paid or payable to Mr. Valenta by the Company with respect to the three fiscal years immediately preceding the event
triggering payment) for the remainder of the term of the Employment Agreement, (iii) medical and dental benefits for the remainder of the term
of the Employment Agreement and (iv) acceleration of all un-expired, un-forfeited and un-exercised equity award;
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� defined the events upon which Non-Compete Payments will be made as (i) breach of the Employment Agreement by the Company,
(ii) termination of Mr. Valenta�s employment by the Company without �cause� (as defined in the Employment Agreement), (iii) resignation by
Mr. Valenta following non-renewal of the Employment Agreement by the Company and (iv) termination of the Employment Agreement by
Mr. Valenta following a �change of control� (as defined in the Employment Agreement) for �good reason� (as defined in the Employment
Agreement);

� allocated the Non-Compete Payments to Mr. Valenta�s non-compete obligations (such consideration will be paid ratably over Mr. Valenta�s three
year non-competition period; provided, however, the Non-Compete Payments will be accelerated and paid in a lump sum upon the death or
�substantial disability� (as defined in the Employment Agreement) of Mr. Valenta);

� conditioned the Non-Compete Payments upon compliance by Mr. Valenta with his expanded non-competition obligations; and

� included a �gross-up� for any excise taxes imposed upon consideration received by Mr. Valenta that is deemed to be a �parachute payment� within
the meaning of section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986;

The purposes of the January 2007 amendments are to (i) motivate Mr. Valenta to (a) remain in our employ during negotiation of any offer to
acquire us or our assets and (b) objectively evaluate and negotiate such any such offer, (ii) ensure that Mr. Valenta receives the benefits intended
to be conferred by the Employment Agreement and (iii) provide benefits and compensation equivalent to that offered by our competitors.

We expect that allocation of the Non-Compete Payments to the extended �non-compete� covenant added to the Employment Agreement will, in
the event of Mr. Valenta�s termination of employment following a change of control, substantially reduce, if not eliminate in its entirety, our
obligation to make payments pursuant to the excise tax �gross-up� provisions added to the Employment Agreement.

Change of Control Agreements. During its meetings on January 11-12, 2007, our board of directors approved the amendment and restatement of
our previously approved Change of Control Agreements (�CoC Agreements�) between us and each of our executive officers (other than Tommy
A. Valenta our Chief Executive Officer and President) (see, Part II. Other Information, Item 5 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended November 30, 2005 and Exhibit 10.23 attached thereto and Part II. Other Information, Item 5 of our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended February 28, 2006 and Exhibit 10.23 attached thereto).

Prior to the January 2007 amendments, the principal terms of the CoC Agreements were as follows:

� Upon termination of employment by us (other than for �cause�) or upon �constructive termination� of employment within two years following the
occurrence of a �change of control� each executive officer will be entitled to receive an amount equal to twice such executive officer�s base salary
and incentive compensation paid with respect to the immediately preceding fiscal year; provided however, if the termination of employment
occurs after the occurrence of a �change of control� and after the subsequent occurrence of a �vesting date�, the executive officer will receive, in lieu
of such amount, an amount equal to the sum of (i) the executive officer�s base salary for the remainder of the two year period following the
change of control and (ii) the amount of incentive compensation, if any, earned by the executive officer on such vesting date; and provided
further, if the termination of employment occurs after the occurrence of a �change of control� and after the subsequent occurrence of two vesting
dates, the executive officer will receive, in lieu of such amount, an amount equal to the executive officer�s base salary for the remainder of the
two year period following the change of control. The term �vesting date� means a date occurring subsequent to the occurrence of a �change of
control� on which the executive officer becomes entitled to receive incentive compensation (currently May 31 of each year);

� Each executive officer will be entitled to receive medical benefits and out-placement services for a period of up to two years; and

� Upon termination of employment by us (other than for �cause�) or upon �constructive termination� of employment within two years following the
occurrence of a �change of control� all un-expired, un-forfeited and un-exercised equity awards held by each of such executive officers
immediately prior to such termination of employment will become immediately vested and exercisable pursuant to their terms.
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The January 2007 amendments made the following changes to the CoC Agreements:

� included a three year non-compete provision;

� included a �gross-up� for any excise taxes imposed upon consideration received by signatories to the CoC Agreements that is deemed to be a
�parachute payment� within the meaning of section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986;

� allocated the consideration payable pursuant to the CoC Agreements to the applicable signatory�s non-compete obligations;

� changed the cash consideration payable under the CoC Agreements to be an amount equal to 200% of the applicable signatory�s then current
base salary and 200% of the highest amount of incentive compensation paid or payable to such signatory with respect to our three fiscal years
immediately preceding the termination of such signatory�s employment with us (such amounts will be payable ratably over the first two years of
such signatory�s three year non-competition period; provided, however, payment will be accelerated and paid in a lump sum upon death or
�substantial disability� (as defined in the CoC Agreements) of such signatory); and

� changed the threshold percentage of ownership of our equity securities that defines a change of control from �33% or more� to �15% or more� (i.e.,
a �change of control� will be deemed to have occurred if any party acquires 15% or more of the combined voting power of our then outstanding
securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors).

The purposes of the January 2007 amendments to the CoC Agreements are to (i) motivate our senior management to (a) remain in our employ
during negotiation of any offer to acquire us or our assets and (b) objectively evaluate and negotiate such any such offer, (ii) ensure that our
senior management receives the benefits intended to be conferred by the CoC Agreements and (iii) provide benefits and compensation
equivalent to that offered by our competitors.

We expect that allocation of the consideration payable under the CoC Agreements to the �non-compete� covenants added to those CoC
Agreements will substantially reduce, if not eliminate in its entirety, our obligation to make payments pursuant to the excise tax �gross-up�
provisions added to the CoC Agreements.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description
3.1 - Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Chaparral Steel Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1

to Chaparral Steel Company�s Amendment No. 1 to Form 10, dated June 10, 2005, file number 000-51307)

3.2 - Bylaws of Chaparral Steel Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Form 10,
dated May 6, 2005, file number 000-51307)

3.3 - Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, filed with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware on July 21, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K, dated July 21, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.1 - Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1, Exhibit 3.2 and Exhibit 3.3

4.2 - Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 6, 2005, among Chaparral Steel Company, certain of its domestic subsidiaries as
guarantors, Banc of America Securities LLC, UBS Securities LLC, SunTrust Capital Markets, Inc., Wells Fargo Securities, LLC
and Comerica Securities, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.3 - Form of Notation of Guarantee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.4 - Form of Chaparral Steel Company�s 10% Senior Note due 2013 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Chaparral Steel
Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.5 - Indenture, dated July 6, 2005, among Chaparral Steel Company, certain of its domestic subsidiaries and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.6 - Rights Agreement, effective as of July 29, 2005, between Chaparral Steel Company and Mellon Investor Services LLC, as rights
agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 21,
2005, file number 000-51307)

10.1 - Purchase Agreement, dated June 29, 2005, among Chaparral Steel Company, Banc of America Securities LLC, UBS Securities
LLC, SunTrust Capital Markets, Inc., Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Comerica Securities, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.2 - Credit Agreement, dated June 16, 2005, among Chaparral Steel Company, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, letter
of credit issuer, swing line lender and lender, UBS Securities LLC, as syndication agent, General Electric Capital Corporation,
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and SunTrust Bank, as co-documentation agents and as lenders, and UBS Loan Finance
LLC and Comerica Bank, as lenders (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)
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10.3 - Security Agreement, dated July 6, 2005, made by Chaparral Steel Company, certain of its domestic subsidiaries, and Bank of America,
N.A. as administrative agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.4 - Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated July 6, 2005, between Texas Industries, Inc. and Chaparral Steel Company
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file
number 000-51307)

10.5 - Amendment No. 1 to Separation and Distribution Agreement between Chaparral Steel Company and Texas Industries, Inc., dated July
27, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.6 - Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement, dated July 6, 2005, between Texas Industries, Inc. and Chaparral Steel Company
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file
number 000-51307)

10.7 - Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Amendment No. 5 to Form 10, dated July 21, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.8 - Chaparral Steel Company Second Amended and Restated Financial Security Plan*

10.9 - Employment Agreement, effective as of January 12, 2007, between Chaparral Steel Company and Tommy A. Valenta*

10.10 - Form of Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005
Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan issued by Chaparral Steel Company in replacement of Texas Industries, Inc. options originally
granted to Texas Industries, Inc. employees under the Texas Industries, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan and the related form of
Amendment (Change of Control) to Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Chaparral Steel
Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2005, file 000-51307)

10.11 - Form of Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005
Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan issued by Chaparral Steel Company in replacement of Texas Industries, Inc. options originally
granted to Texas Industries, Inc. employees under the Texas Industries, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31,
2005, file number 000-51307)

10.12 - Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan issued by Chaparral Steel Company in replacement of Texas Industries, Inc. options originally granted to Texas
Industries, Inc. non-employee directors under the Texas Industries, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan and the related form of Amendment
(Change of Control) to Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Chaparral Steel Company�s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2005, file number 000-51307)
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10.13 - Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan issued by Chaparral Steel Company in replacement of Texas Industries, Inc. options originally granted to Texas
Industries, Inc. non-employee directors under the Texas Industries, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file
number 000-51307)

10.14 - Form of Stock Option Agreement for employees under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.15 - Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement for non-employee directors under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated
2005 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.16 - Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for non-employee directors under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005
Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.17 - Form of Texas Industries, Inc. Common Stock Award Plan and Award Letters for Tommy A. Valenta and William H. Dickert assumed
by Chaparral Steel Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.23 - Form of Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement entered into with the executive officers of Chaparral Steel Company
(other than the Chief Executive Officer) effective as of January 12, 2007*

10.24 - Chaparral Steel Company 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Chaparral Steel
Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated August 29, 2006, file number 000-51307).

10.25 - Form of 2007 Annual Incentive Award Agreement entered into with the executive officers of Chaparral Steel Company (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated August 29, 2006, file number
000-51307).

15.1 - Letter Re: Unaudited Interim Financial Information*

31.1 - Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer*

31.2 - Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer*

32.1 - Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive Officer*

32.2 - Section 1350 Certification of Principal Financial Officer*

* Filed herewith. The remaining exhibits have been omitted because they are not applicable or the information required therein is included
elsewhere in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHAPARRAL STEEL COMPANY

January 12, 2007 /s/ J. Celtyn Hughes
J. Celtyn Hughes
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

January 12, 2007 /s/ M. Kevin Linch
M. Kevin Linch
Vice President-Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

42

Edgar Filing: Chaparral Steel CO - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 54



Table of Contents

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
3.1 - Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Chaparral Steel Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1

to Chaparral Steel Company�s Amendment No. 1 to Form 10, dated June 10, 2005, file number 000-51307)

3.2 - Bylaws of Chaparral Steel Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Form 10,
dated May 6, 2005, file number 000-51307)

3.3 - Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, filed with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware on July 21, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K, dated July 21, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.1 - Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1, Exhibit 3.2 and Exhibit 3.3

4.2 - Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 6, 2005, among Chaparral Steel Company, certain of its domestic subsidiaries as
guarantors, Banc of America Securities LLC, UBS Securities LLC, SunTrust Capital Markets, Inc., Wells Fargo Securities, LLC
and Comerica Securities, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.3 - Form of Notation of Guarantee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Quarterely Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.4 - Form of Chaparral Steel Company�s 10% Senior Note due 2013 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Chaparral Steel
Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.5 - Indenture, dated July 6, 2005, among Chaparral Steel Company, certain of its domestic subsidiaries and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)

4.6 - Rights Agreement, effective as of July 29, 2005, between Chaparral Steel Company and Mellon Investor Services LLC, as rights
agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 21,
2005, file number 000-51307)

10.1 - Purchase Agreement, dated June 29, 2005, among Chaparral Steel Company, Banc of America Securities LLC, UBS Securities
LLC, SunTrust Capital Markets, Inc., Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Comerica Securities, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.2 - Credit Agreement, dated June 16, 2005, among Chaparral Steel Company, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, letter
of credit issuer, swing line lender and lender, UBS Securities LLC, as syndication agent, General Electric Capital Corporation,
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and SunTrust Bank, as co-documentation agents and as lenders, and UBS Loan Finance
LLC and Comerica Bank, as lenders (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)
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10.3 - Security Agreement, dated July 6, 2005, made by Chaparral Steel Company, certain of its domestic subsidiaries, and Bank of America,
N.A. as administrative agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.4 - Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated July 6, 2005, between Texas Industries, Inc. and Chaparral Steel Company
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file
number 000-51307)

10.5 - Amendment No. 1 to Separation and Distribution Agreement between Chaparral Steel Company and Texas Industries, Inc., dated July
27, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.6 - Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement, dated July 6, 2005, between Texas Industries, Inc. and Chaparral Steel Company
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 12, 2005, file
number 000-51307)

10.7 - Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Amendment No. 5 to Form 10, dated July 21, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.8 - Chaparral Steel Company Second Amended and Restated Financial Security Plan*

10.9 - Employment Agreement, effective as of January 12, 2007, between Chaparral Steel Company and Tommy A. Valenta*

10.10 - Form of Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005
Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan issued by Chaparral Steel Company in replacement of Texas Industries, Inc. options originally
granted to Texas Industries, Inc. employees under the Texas Industries, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan and the related form of
Amendment (Change of Control) to Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Chaparral Steel
Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.11 - Form of Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005
Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan issued by Chaparral Steel Company in replacement of Texas Industries, Inc. options originally
granted to Texas Industries, Inc. employees under the Texas Industries, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31,
2005, file number 000-51307)

10.12 - Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan issued by Chaparral Steel Company in replacement of Texas Industries, Inc. options originally granted to Texas
Industries, Inc. non-employee directors under the Texas Industries, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan and the related form of Amendment
(Change of Control) to Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Chaparral Steel Company�s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2005, file number 000-51307)
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10.13 - Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan issued by Chaparral Steel Company in replacement of Texas Industries, Inc. options originally granted to Texas
Industries, Inc. non-employee directors under the Texas Industries, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file
number 000-51307)

10.14 - Form of Stock Option Agreement for employees under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.15 - Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement for non-employee directors under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated
2005 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.16 - Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for non-employee directors under the Chaparral Steel Company Amended and Restated 2005
Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.17 - Form of Texas Industries, Inc. Common Stock Award Plan and Award Letters for Tommy A. Valenta and William H. Dickert assumed
by Chaparral Steel Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2005, file number 000-51307)

10.23 - Form of Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement entered into with the executive officers of Chaparral Steel Company
(other than the Chief Executive Officer) effective as of January 12, 2007*

10.24 - Chaparral Steel Company 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Chaparral Steel
Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated August 29, 2006, file number 000-51307)

10.25 - Form of 2007 Annual Incentive Award Agreement entered into with the executive officers of Chaparral Steel Company (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Chaparral Steel Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated August 29, 2006, file number
000-51307)

15.1 - Letter Re: Unaudited Interim Financial Information*

31.1 - Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer*

31.2 - Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer*

32.1 - Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive Officer*

32.2 - Section 1350 Certification of Principal Financial Officer*

* Filed herewith
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